
MINUTES

HOUSING AND COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

11 NOVEMBER 2015

Present:

Members:

Councillors: S Adshead
Banks
Mrs Bassadone
Conway
P Hearn
Link
Fethney
Imarni
Mahmood (Chairman)
McLean (Vice-Chairman)
Silwal
Timmis
W Wyatt-Lowe
Marshall
Harden
Griffiths

Co-Optee

Councillors:  

Officers: Steven Baker Assistant Director - Chief Executive's Unit
Elliott Brooks Assistant Director - Housing
Julie Still Group Manager - Resident Services
Dave Cove Dacorum Sportspace
Chris Troy Group Manager - Regulatory Services
David Austin Assistant Director - Neighbourhood Delivery

Also Attendance:  Kayley Johnston – Member Support Officer

The meeting began at 7.30 pm

41  MINUTES

The minutes of the Housing and Community OSC meeting on 14 October 2015 were 
agreed by members however Cllr W Wyatt-Lowe requested two minor changes. 
The committee agreed to the changes and for the minutes to then be signed.



The Committee agreed for Item 11 - Sportspace Annual Review to be brought 
forward as the first item on the agenda.

42  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies received. Cllr Imarni and Cllr Harden had informed the 
Committee they were running late.

43  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Cllr Imarni declared an interest in Sportspace as she is a Trustee.

44  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There was no public participation.

45  CONSIDERATION OF ANY MATTER REFERRED TO THE 
COMMITTEE IN RELATION TO CALL-IN

None.

46  SPORTSPACE ANNUAL REPORT

D Cove presented the Annual Sportspace Review April 2014 – March 2015, the 
powerpoint presentation explained what Sportspace, Little Hay and XC do so new 
Members had a full understanding. It also provided Members with information about 
the performances; activities provided and outlines some proposals for the future.

Cllr Griffith arrived at 19:38

A few key points which D Cove highlighted where;
We are top 3 in the County for H&S Audits.
Post audit figures 2014/15
There are new processes put in place for Customers Journey.
The new facilities in Little Hay are doing extremely well, the function hall and foot 
golf.
The attendance figures are stationary but they have changed the way they record 
attendance.
Complaints and accident and staff accidents have gone down.
The next financial year they will be looking at income generation.

Cllr Harden Arrived at 19:50

D Cove finished off with a short video highlighting key facts.

Cllr Imarni Arrived at 19:53



3

D Cove was happy to take questions from Members.

Cllr Mahmood referred to the complaints at Longdean, why have they gone up?

D Cove said yes the number have complaints have gone up but there has been no 
trend and they are regularly monitored they are just small unfortunate complaints like 
accidental over booking etc.

Cllr Mahmood said you referred to facilities, did you mention the track up Jarman in 
your presentation.
D Cove said yes the track was mentioned however it doesn’t generate much income 
it’s mainly clubs and schools which use this facility. 

Cllr Mahmood said the grant has gone down, do you have a risk register for this.
D Cove said the trustees monitor this closely. Since having the new low cost gym 
they have lost out on 150,000 due to competition.

Cllr Mahmood asked if people apply for a sports grants.
D Cove said the older ones, and it’s a struggle to get a grant.

Cllr W Wyatt-Lowe referred to the pie chart showing venues, is corporate profitable.
D Cove said corporate is not a venue it’s the Councils grant.

Cllr Imarni declared an interest. (see above OS-258-15)

Cllr Timmis said that she had noticed that Watling area is showing as an obese area, 
is this something that you are going to approach.

D Cove said they do work with school Nurses around obesity and help with active 
living, yes it can be expanded out to the villages.

Cllr Timmis also added to that by saying she had recently spoke to a resident who 
was a swimming instructor who would like to see an Olympic size pool. Would this be 
possible?

 D Cove said it’s very unlikely as its costly and there is no room to expand and they 
don’t have funding.

Cllr Link asked if the investment in Tring and Berko could be explained.

Cllr Harden said they are looking at the budget for Tring to see how they can upgrade 
the pool.

Cllr Conway said when this happens how will it be managed?

Cllr Harden said it will be down to the school and the centre to decide its likely they 
will bring in a management company rather than both parties managing it, 
unfortunately he couldn’t give a definite answer.

Cllr Griffiths said that Jarman Park is looking lovely is there anything we can do to the 
XC as its look old and out dated compared to the rest.



Cllr Mahmood added to that by saying some lights might give it an upgrade.

Cllr Marshall asked why the food rating still only had 4 stars when we were promised 
5 stars.

D Cove said the food rating is 5 stars the thing that let us down was a light bulb out 
and a broken floor tile so this took us to a 4.

Action:  None
Outcome: Report was noted.

S Baker and D Cove left the meeting.

47  QUARTER 2 - BUDGET REPORT

D Skinner presented a brief report on the forecast outturn for 2015/2016 as at 30 
September 2015. D Skinner gave an overview of the General Funds, Housing 
Revenue Account and Capital Programme.

D Skinner was happy to take questions from Members.

Cllr Mclean referred to 4.9 interests and investment income, this sounds good is that 
storing problems due to rent income?
 
E Brooks said yes the right to buy has an impact on the loss of income. We are not 
building at the rate we are selling so there is a loss of income there.

Cllr Griffith added to that, this is factored into the budget.

Cllr W Wyatt-Lowe referred to 4.6, policy change. How much reduction is due to the 
change and he can’t get the figures to add up.

E Brooks said it’s a contractual change, we felt we were paying for more than what 
we were getting. The figures need a tidying up.

Cllr Mahmood asked if there was a risk with employees 3.1.

D Skinner said the budget is set on historical trends and the budget is set for a staff 
turnover, it is now reducing but this is something we can’t control.

Cllr Mahmood spoke about appendix B and C and said with regards to the home 
improvement grant it’s a shame it didn’t go to the people it should of.

D Skinner said its stays in the unclaimed grants. 
C Troy added to that it’s the Government grant for non-Hemel.

Action: None
Outcome: The report was noted. 



5

48  QUARTER 2 - HOUSING

E Brooks presented this report, and highlighted the following points,
Good performance throughout Osbornes the performance indicators are green and 
amber.
The trend for out of hours work has reduced.
Recruitment of a total asset Manager.
The empty homes are performing well.
Income collection, they are confident they will hit this year’s targets.
Longlands development is nearly complete and the new homes will be advertised 
shortly.

E Brooks was happy to take questions from Members.

Cllr Mclean commented on the reds on the risk register.

E Brooks said the reds are what we give them before we score them, it’s the end 
column you look at, this shows work going on to reduce it.

Cllr S Adshead asked if other blocks were being expanded.

E Brooks explained that this was a pilot scheme. It is a possibility that it can be done 
again but it would now fall under total asset management. 

Cllr Mahmood asked if Capital Programme is that in accordance with plans.

E Brooks said in terms of planned works they are approximately 1.8% behind profile 
budget end, However he is confident they will catch up.

Cllr Mahmood referred to the risk register, when does amber become red in terms of 
the numbering.

E Brooks will feedback to the committee.
 
Action:  As above.
Outcome: Report was noted.

49  QUARTER 2 - RESIDENT SERVICES

D Austin presented this report on behalf of Julie Still who couldn’t attend tonight’s 
meeting. 
D Austin gave updates on the following key points of the report. 
Page 42, update on Dacorum crime statistics, page 44, love your neighbourhood, 
page 45 The Adventure Playground. Spike in violent crime, if Members would like 
more information on this J Still will be happy to provide this. Coming to this 
committee in January will be the new code of practice for CCTV, Jim Guiton also won 
an award recently for the CCTV. 

D Austin was happy to take questions from Members.



Cllr Mclean referred to 7.3 can you please explain what it actually means, does it 
mean if someone is to use a personal CCTV camera it can’t be used in prosecution?

D Austin said the best person to ask would be Jim Guiton so he will get clarification 
and feedback.

Cllr P Hearn asked if the Community Centres were covered by CCTV as Tring seems 
very keen to have cameras.

D Austin said he will have to check with Jim Guiton but going forward from the code 
of practice in January we need to justify where we are placing our camera. 

Cllr Bassadone referred to 12.5 can you explain what the 8 is as the page cuts off.

D Austin said it looks like the text has rolled to 12.6 and should ‘read 87 requests for 
footage’.

Cllr Mahmood said he’s been looking at the risk registers and in terms of probability 
p52 ‘response to EH Emergencies’ how likely is this.

C Troy said it’s not easy to predict but they can only plan for these things and have 
procedures in place.
They are looking at planning an evacuation sometime next year, the most recent one 
was a year and a half ago which took place in Kings Langley.

Cllr W Wyatt-Lowe referred to 7.3 there have been a few cases where people with 
their private CCTV cameras have been looking into neighbour’s gardens and they 
had to be told off for doing so, could this be taken back to the CCTV experts to find 
out what renders the CCTV. 

D Austin to take back to Jim Guiton.

Action:  As above.
Outcome: Report was noted.

50  QUARTER 2 - REGULATORY SERVICES

C Troy presented the report and highlighted the performance indicators and a few 
key points on food safety inspections, they aim to reach target by the end of the year. 
They issued a notice to a resident in Albury for playing loud music. A voluntary 
closure, due to a cockroach infestation. Bovingdon Airfield is still an on-going issue 
and residents have raised an issue regarding foot paths around there, C Troy did 
confirm that the footpaths have been patrolled and they are up to standard. The DCS 
chairs are being replaced throughout the Council.
There has been lots of in house training rather than buying in a consultant.

C Troy was happy to take questions from Members.

Cllr Timmis referred to page 65, is a sting by a wasp really a notifiable risk.



7

C Troy said yes because this could be due to a reaction and having time off work for 
it.

Cllr W Wyatt-Lowe said can you think of any barriers which would possibly be of use 
to prevent fly tipping.

C Troy said we need to increase monitoring on fly tipping and speak with landlords of 
where this is happening. With regards to barriers we would need to look into this 
more, depending on who owns the lands etc.

Cllr Silwal added to that saying he has an issue in his area regarding fly tipping and 
asked if we could put prosecution signs.

C Troy said there are processes regarding this and they would need to be followed, 
C Troy asked if Cllr Silwal could pass on information regarding the fly tipping so this 
can be looked into.

Cllr Mahmood asked if there was a policy on HMO’s.

C Troy said yes and he will feed back on this.

C Troy left the meeting at 21:09

Action:  C Troy to report back on the above questions
Outcome: Report was noted.

51  ANNUAL REVIEW OF HRA BUSINESS PLAN

E Brooks presented this report and covered the HRA business plans which they have 
to consider this year and explained the issues and assumptions which needed to be 
considered.
E Brooks highlighted the key issues, Homelessness is rising and it’s doubled in the 
last year. The 1% decrease does have an impact and development costs have gone 
up. Capital Programme is reducing. All details can be found in the report. If the report 
is approved the budget starts in February 2016.

E Brooks was happy to take questions from Members.

Cllr Imarni put forward a question regarding selling Council homes and giving monies 
to HA, how does that work.

E Brooks said we are not exempt, 

Cllr Mclean said that the Committee need to digest the information.

The Committee agreed that they need time to digest this report.

Action:  None
Outcome:   Report was noted.



52  YOUNG PERSONS HOUSING STRATEGY

E Brooks presented this report on behalf of Isabell Connolly who unfortunately 
couldn’t attend tonight’s meeting. Elliot gave a brief overview to the committee 
explaining that they acknowledge that young people are at a disadvantage, the 
strategy has no changes and asked the committed if they had questions or feedback 
on the report to email or speak to Julia Hedger, Isabell Connolly or E Brooks himself 
as the report is going to the next Cabinet meeting.

Action:  None
Outcome: Report was noted.

53  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

Agreed.

54  WORK PROGRAMME

Agreed.

The Meeting ended at 21:45


